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TUAT %A & 43 P ¥3 AE YO FWR TR | GE FER AR WG SIS Fie
(RevPAR) &. ¥,959 1T 9T ®. %99 Tl & | TERT @ qar § I279 T Areary i
T qYH A 9 FAE R A AT §.53% B TANGAF qig TE T AT 95 UL 13
TG BT T | TG AIE TR AT AMGF a6 08K /9% (2095 /9%) AT HT GCATTH G2
HATHHT 9.05% o gig aitad Tl |
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B A ATIEF TP Jeiigd AARTHT B ATRTHET S MMTH S | FIGHVS! 2TRTH
BICAEEH] HIST ATICTAT AFTHT g% adwy srRifeed =9 EIdeigsd! Yaer Say seandes qig
§E | T Hed Bel B1deee GATATH] ATEAHa! T el SaraHT ATST qATE ATEATHT Taehl
TUATI FISTEEHT AITHT H AT TUHT B T Tl a1 B9 T95 AN (R F | Iwriigy
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YA TS B T AT SHTHIHT ASH Tl NRIEArs =JATBLOT T 94T JATRTATS Jarad




W85

oiLte

°.‘-jé.;.
agalice Holel Limited
i 3 * # #
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FAA TR [BqTeTs gurieafawr R e, Beeenl [F9AT Ioed ¥ YamEal MY
RRIEAT T8 TP AT EIEeTehl YaTgsed! AT Ma=uehl SR anargess! i sear
T T% BIEd T8 OIS @ G |

foree aram 9t 9T qR¥E (World Travel and Tourism Council) %7 e 19 J&r=dT #nftiss

qiqee 2095 (Economic Impact Annual Report 2018) FFHR, ¥ 095 AT {a99®T Fof M@ey
JEATGHT ATAT TIT TheP] AREH TARS TR ,940.90 37 (G WMeed FeTaaH 3.3%)
TEol T 9 | RO ATAT TAT G4 & e 3.8% o dig 93 qERiE geX 5¥’ R
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g ATATST AT T 4R.80 BAS (B AVTIRIET 3.8 WIS IS GO g werdor
TRUE @ | ITh AR GOATHT Bl qaard, AT TSe, URelgaes, aa7 9+ aTay
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S AT MR AR S Jar Tl FHaTeheld Fad aw THISH] HATHaTy, TaiET
TAT RS G a7 a1 f§7 JANTens q0T I9 A B | A9 AleF, € 04 AT ATAT
4T 9hET AT FARGT TEAX R¥0.% WM ISl AT ATHN PoAT 9N, I R04% =T A
T ¥ ¥% A gy g7 e T g |
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{ErEaTeel Jerepl AT &1els &Al oar o WorpT & | T FRATaATRl e WIATHT RISaT o
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i & ANTE HATTT AT TNAHE T 1 9Th TS STHT U g9l YO FEl wF a9l
900 I HITHTEHFT WRAT TaT fG qa &THal WSS | TE S AT UgAesadrs Fed
FATSH &Col ETeeTehl 279 Bld T Teb THAFT YO FT HX T4 Y I&T Hiewqrgepel Mg M9
R AF b &7 FHG AT TRUS! G |

Heferer wifger Wetger dife dradl wiwed e QaaT IR T q9r Jeee dve] far
e T Gl SO @ L 96 YAl & 9ud, [, S, New 9T e, 9nm, <

ST IS dYEan Yfaaes Iqae W & |

weafs giee uigr faw ol TSF AT QAT SI9HT BICaD! agd ATARIR] T ATHT
v Fer @y i uSe g i rhe MEi e B S9ET & 990 99 FAAEe 6 O |

FrTE frarera faT wams! AMfad SEHvTATE THITHTT T WA BIE (Sunken Cout) HiedeRT
97 AT gk, T TAT FHI weT, AT ahREet g

FIITTDT BTel TSIgebl ol a9y W1 G T | T Afafd AR WHTT He7 & (Reception
Area) @S JAIMHTI FAT WRIFTAT T ATSTAT TeHl G | T TATAIOI HId TaT 716 Foara=at
T&T TTAIT A RIENEEATS AT IAT AT FHfTpl g Y qAT Rianeass $UT ( Heritage
theme) $Fesbrl T AT T@&Y f&g QAMAT RA AT 3 |
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FHTE BISATS] FUABT 8T HFIHIP] (AP TUT F0E AT TT EIeTas qoan
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AT THT 1

aftredl sl AT SeE U AR Wilgent el aigisrer 06 dume 93 TS At
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TAMATT G ARITSEE Wl B | arienr el weEResdl W 38eR 3
IR I YATTHIT qRATSAT 068 T IF ARAERT AT O IS TS
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I FFAIeT APl TET FEHIE qTER W GSETARAT JeUER T auEeHT
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FEOHR NS q97 STk a7 saraaTaSs gy

¥ ITHE BB WEY WASRT TWISTE | 79 99 I Seel ALy ¥ SHANEs g qhere acaw
GERYl AAERHT fEh FUAT SIeel AR UEARSEE JUeel qEA-SE@ TR e
HYTLATH AT IBE T URRIT a7 JEH I q4T FAens JTeE THbl a7 qEdd 39
ST W AL T T FTABT AT THS(E WS RO Wead T a87 AeT Fd qoamae

T |
T qiata dedl diERer Tr FHETEeEl JTawne] ATaadis Sreiedr giaew
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Y& TS BIEITE 9T THGHT TATGT FH U0 FAX aMebl A@TE o el SXTAT gol ¢ favee
EEH H |

TIeET BTeaTshl ATRAT AT GTEATEs, |TAT STY(dhdlEs, JATIETIHES, S qdT we LSS, A
TSES, (AT 3HEREE ¥ WIAYIGTAIES, 219 Uoiedl T GRS Ias, AXdn FeTad Afreries
< TarAe THeTaeea T e 9T, ueY ¥ Qe aanas qwed e 9 |

FEAT eI AT W oTatthe T S TRiEEe (e’ i sfeertedl 99
£ | werdl TuTel IURT aTired HETHHHT THIUE qa a1 9 aied Tiaadd % q9 (@),
T 1o TE, T AU ShRETgE AF FFIA] Yeha ekl qEed TEhl G |

TouTed T QoI QIATHT qreadT

ITHF GIATTHRT F<HAT

FETHIT AP ALAET igel STEAT Q SATH! YSATAS AT T8 B | PR ALALT dek
FoITeTes GHITHT I7T TITIES AT BIAHTT STUH HETATATE Toelliere] BIaerehl ae Foarer
T s walafaeear Wi f6E9T | JeuTas arafaar wed, R ady e, faw,
o Far fadrr & qar 9T seaasT e geeaie dreenr fatersen it T fawee
T BT B |

wesreres Affaer e wotas frenfader T, AEr @ewie dedEedl gHIE 99T
FrETSTT ST T, BIEeel AW qAT A HUATET T84, JHad Braasaa e,
it e faavomss! fGaradie T4, TUT Sew TTEATIT THEATS THAHE AT TR
FEATE 60 G9T $397 YIS T gty T S " Mumes T e

T QIS AR SR U, et S, frafees, Fame femere S R,
Rrdras O, Framaedt qur e grEedT B, FEOER TaRTd ¥ (AR, q9r e
T A qEe S T e et afvdt fra T arAr siferer gan O
TEG, | AT a6 09, /9, W] STEHT & TTH ouTeish QINiqes] 45 oy |

ouTo® GrATTHT qiETe

qIfF a9 R08Y /9% W IEHT qeHTEd giafaar givaad 9o e | g9 a9 o fqew
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HEAD] AT AATH Johas ~aTeleh] HEET U, 2053 (Fefig™ afya) Tar Hro=ran
o |

qoeTeTh AiHfaeT Sadee eIl AT BT UA, R0%3 (FAH Afed) W U waa
it Fraifed wwamaty R W@ fudr | oonfde a9 R0WY /9% (095 /9%) HT FHEIHTEHT
FSAHS WHITH qEeoe[s do® Al 490 ST & @@ 99 89X 9 T &3 S4G7 sqeRT

T faar

FIATH] SATYTAAT AIX T IHG TCaes

I ¥ = A U 3090% W YT R AR SIAT wfeltal SR qEwr $rr e
FAUTAE AP TMaAtafegs o7 waTiaT 9q IReTHRET |9 2099, @7 9fEEr § wherEr 9h
Forea srdererhl oM Beareares R T | a9e dav R 5% 1o qR9E AeEEs
SHA AT T A GE GHT AT I I AT 51 A1, Sfreene S o 9wt
FHTHT PIROT I a9 FYAr ¥ 6T I Ul g | favasr gdeneiieeer Sy e
TFL %1 AP FiTege! THIET PR FHoeTehl AT FATEHETTAT 99 STEITar ATSg qar i
e WA e WG | T T, AR FR T TR S aar fededy
AT Ffg 5T T R09% W 3.3% T8 & 99, I R0R0 AT Wl Gig g TS 1.5% | fata @
A eI | I (el Tgaset sfa=ar 99 e gig 3¢ 47 092 AT 9.5% &9
T W ROR0 AT el T §F g .9% ¥ A TG | IR s q9r ¥ Prasrafirer

AT qUEHT ACESHT A q0g T T 309% AT ¥.9% @ & 9, T 030 A7 41 gig 9
¥.9% I UFHTT TR T | FEAATT GRTATET anfies aivged TeRIcas 18T aFaTT TR
G | A AT Fig ey qRIee I YR RS B TG AAR T R09% AT AEF
g L% EH W W, T 030 A FT UK §.0% @ AHM TRUHE | &Y T T 3099
1 AR A Afg ©.3% ET B A, T 030 AT HE Ay HE O4% B ATEA TRGH
g |

fereer el T FresTar SrEmafes S 098 I AU SHINE, TUTET AAF TE 06 /9%
(RO95 /9% HT FF MET ITAGH 9.9% o ig g AT TRUH B | Ith Jrgehl & HRU

T qiegebl TSl TR eh! 1, SR WAR, IO SMTIfeaT Jeered qur ¥ THes AT
qUH IgeTTs AT Alebrg | GaT FaaM, Bled ¥ Ve A WY UUehdl ATTHTHT HUH

Foerer g T (Sl ST o] gatEane s W 9l daae SR aEEy ad giq
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FATETT ST O U%ET qlg Ve AT TRUHT G | AT Y, ANAT 6 I GHOT A
030 TEHI UM Feeled TACHB] ATTHA § AT THUH F |

T T GHe dent wifies faera qar ISR Forr TEeh qiHeT TEdl B | T 095 |
Feroerel o7 WTEeT JEAETHT ATAT TAT TISA ST 3.3% AVIET el Fadl qor &9 095 w1
ATAT AT THEA G T 4R FAE 30 ARG AR STBT oAl ey AT (el JISree!
3.5%) | fave AdE=IE AR TEE ST AT RS9l AelE TEes § |
Howh (e Ay 7T §sT (UNWTO) B T4 Hidqaed 48 gied aifaet Frdwax
309% (World Tourism Barometer, September 2019) 3R A< /g 5[ R09% TS AATTHT
favaer Pafag Twa=r WEESHT THE T aRadIEd qdTH ANTAN SE@ AHT S8 HIE q0
T E=dT ¥ AT FE sifael ST Gier orafieEr el AT 3 Beige gkl B | 9 R09%
@I gfgell SATTgEAT (99 TdaF ANTHART ¥% o g AUH T |

SrersRy UGl ufedeEer, e A ad ud, 003 SemE 9% T AR HelemEe
qfEET BT aUEEHT ST Tt ANTHT Jig &5 TP Ted HITHAB] GETHT iy 98 797
T A TS | G 095 HUTAE] TS SAH) AT A Hewd o 99 @Al | WelIEeT
afE ufeel Tow JUTEHT IO 0@ W[ Gdl g4ed M | 9§ R09s guar Aqrear faadd
TR el T 99 W 9% BSR SR ARl fa, S A 3099 F ASAT W% o AGT &

I TS EAATE Fel AT T AR TAT 00 FRIE 3 TG O} FAN BH TN | A9

e el dre dedie WER, A 09% F AEEl § HGATHT THEH ANTAA FEdr L g
oY FER Y W I @A WA I GE rahmr w9 095 ST Q€% o F¢l 8 1 WA 095 H
qfll & WREATHT U UHT THed W ¥ W@ Q0 FWW Y WA 3¥ IWH FAT | Wi, e
Torepr PRI Ol TSNS SHT WHUT T AN THEFEEH GEITHT U Jwrd ST gig
ST T | AU R QR drdare aiequr, fafre Seeer e, aifde gt grTie
e, AreEaE qor UaETae aREY Rl gl fafaaare Eeer 59 € L oy, e
TAT TedhTs ST RIS GfeEdl @ | AUTHSRl QA Al fadreet it Jew
TS AT, FATS HATHT GHR, WITHETS e WA WA {69 R a4 qed HAr
TRIHT SATEEAT, AATUTcHE TR SATaTd, ¥ YR THRH! 1T e Fiafder i,
T FRE TATCATS (MR AT JATeAeb] THETH! THIT [oerer G & | A 9T
T o Y00 FT ANTATT AT THEdy Tar q9T JeATEAATS TAT AW fagpr W T
T e TATTEEH] (IRaRers Fetdl (Mg ¥ T4 e Trelel B SaEl THahes

HIYE STPUT F9TE AT Tal AaaaH THehid ey bl <9l Awaxiiegd Tdeq auiedl

e fepTy TE T |
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HOWAT HAOSAE  TEdl SAMUHD | Gurde  GiAfdel SRRl I e e
FTARIAR AT Tl IR BN AT TETTNETFATE It T, TodATe T (ABIREEsh I00
HAAAT 7 HAATIAAS (29T [ETHT G |

THHT ATAITh, TGTYTETRe AQTINET e o Jool@ Tl FHATR [ga] GRel qige
AR SHTAEAT g aAtehl Taabl Arad [aa1 aweey feoofiept avae AT S+ HmT godrq faare!
Aea HRT Aifer AT afg=m T @i T Faid mEawer W g | e A 3T
AMET TR S SATSUHT HEATE faarr 99 g7 g afafeer gfg wuH SRvEne HE v
W@ie T AT (R FRESE T R SUITh AT &7, |

ATAT AIEHIE T RN TRYH A
FHEIAR] Feersh WA SRRl WEATEeedrs H¥AIE! o Ay qur st Sax guiet

W35 ¥ YRR B BTANT T, 5,3%,05,00%/- TG ATH T HFEAG! {07 AV qar
=[ehT ¥R GoiieeT % wicera e Sk faaeer i faomifeer et |

TETdF FEIHT

Tiatales Gearad MR Aeksl Sieass fHusr g0

TMATAEs T T IR TS, |

I WETAF HEIRTE SFErirerer TRUH 00§ AYE 3 T AR 9% FollS 098 AT T
qUBl A TP Goel GIATTR! qifes Giaaen, aaradierses yiaaed aigas! argerd,

0% ATE 39 T TEAAR 9§ SeTs R09% & a7y faereor, ¢ €Y fafaerr vig vare frawoee
YUTHLT TP AT foaruEe SoREwT HETTHTaeh! STFHRIH AT FFIT U, 053 B THT
%3 AT F AR] G AL 9 GEl aRITAHET AT TASTATT T qiqaraeer afa=
AT SYAT TEeRT B |
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FEAT TA, 083 AR FWHTE F@INET T TS FeMAe S@TTIsdes aar. aF
TEEHAT d4T @I R N TUREN SAae Wl | i agne amrTaes, Ay
T & U &7 R IUTAT UUE %, AEE UHTgUauey FHEIAT UA, 083 BT THT 999 &I STEHT 3

F1 gradr FAENGH O IR g9 4 e |

RITfeeT T SRR AT® a9 0% /098 (092 /30) %I M ] dMTP wE@ILeTE
T ¥ froreenr mikafres FraiRo o RS @i TS |

e ATAT, HEHTET wilad Gl s@mders & # v & a) Iwen we %, s
THSTCUTH, FIGHTSIS IAMAF TT 08K / 06k (3095 /9%) &I FAHEAT T HHIs JaTH
TR Jeored JATES i ATHI Y& TE |

FHTE QAT W qiHTaee

FEIAIE] HATeF qiATqare Seied gtaka wrd athfaers s U, T #re aqn
froumes 991 97 FRE TUTET TERT AVITAESH GRS T AUER JdeE T
TR, | FEIATAT AR Sure s grfaere Hed 39 FHides B o

AGTIAET FOART

FRAT U, R0%3 (T R00%) BT THT %% FT ATET FHITH dr@raererr gfufer Lar=r TR
T 1 A9 @I giafaer yafae SEvd 9l wEEiel el 99 b fHereess
TARTAATEA T I (aXoraT Ieerd TNUH TEedt grad TTH, AT (Ma= qumedt
JAT SMGH HEATIT TG ARES A T, F A T T AT A@TIET0 lebel Tl
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PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statemenis of Soaltee Hotel Limited (the "Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019), the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, staiement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes fo the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

in our opinion, except for the effects of the matter describad in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
secfion of cur report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in Note 4.4 b, out of the iotal leave liability of Rs 122,289,648 as on 16 July 2019
determined by the actuary, only Rs 114,216,378 has been recognized in the financial statements
and balance of Rs 8,073,271 has been deferred to be recognized in the fulure years as per the
decision of the management. This is not in line with the accounting policy adopted by the Company
to account for long term liabilities on accrual basis. Had the total leave liability determined by the
actuary been recognized in the financial statements, the total expenses would have increased by
Rs 8,073,271 with a corresponding decrease in bonus and profits for the year and increase in non-
currant liabilities by Rs 8,073,271,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsiblilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbock of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together
with the ethicat requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined that
there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
~due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or {o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

124, Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel:+ 977 01 4410027, +977 01 4420026, Fax: +977 014413307 pki.trunco.com.np

PKF T, R. Upadhya & Co. is 8 member of the PKF internationat Limited nefwork of lagally independent firms and does not accapt any responsibility or iability for
the actions or inactions of any other individusa! member or firms.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but i not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and rmaintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

¥ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rigks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal conirol.

@ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a geing concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requlred
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
of, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease {o continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of dojng so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, statement of financial
position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019), the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2083,
are in agreement with the books of account of the Company, except for the matter described in
the basis for qualified opinion paragraph; and proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from
our examination of the books of account of the Company necessary for the purpose of our audit,
we have not come across cases where Board of Directors or any employees of the Company have
acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Company relating to the accounts in the Company.

Shashi Satyal
Pariner

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

124 Lal Coleny Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 18 November 2019 (2 Mangsir 2076)

UDIN No: 191118CA00008Abxx!
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

2.1.
2.1.1.

2.1.2,

2.1.3.

a)

b)

General Information

Boaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited Hability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON} and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the
Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its
incorporation more than 50 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five star
qualify hotel facilities from the date of commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely
H 1 Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business.
Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels
and Resorts Pvt. Lid. with 24% share in the company.

Holiday Inns (China) Limited, an Intercontinental Hotels Group {IHG) owned company operates the 282
saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites under the Hotel Management Agreement with the
Company. The Company also operates a LSG Sky Chef - Flight Catering Unit under a Technical
Assistance Agreement with L3G Catering Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors on 18
November 2019 (02Mangsir 2076) and has recommended for approval by sharehaolders in the Annual
General Meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the following material
items:
- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.
- Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the
obligation.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. it also requires
management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The
company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgments are continuously evaluated hased on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, In the future,
actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are:

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of
each reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of hoth the technical life of the assets
and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and extermal factors including relative
efficiency and operating costs.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash
flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply,
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economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash
flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Company.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate (21.25%). Deferred tax
assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the
management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgment is required to determnine the estimated lability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination of
employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate of
increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may change
depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

2.2.

2.2.1.

2.2.2

2.2.3
i.

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the
company’s functional currency.

Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where
significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their
effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

Standalone financial statements

This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated financial
statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.

Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are recognized only to
the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate, The investor's share in the associate's profits
and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recognition

The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue,
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Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the entity’s
business model} and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine whether the
financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI}

or fair value through profit or loss {‘FVPL").

- At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They
are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

~ At fair value through prefit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on
its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

- At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and
changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value
reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is
reclassified to retained eamings.

Finanecial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets {or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the swm of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new Hability assumed) and {ii} any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

The financial assets and financial Labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Amortized cost measurement

The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
guoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

d
*
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2.2.4

2.2.5

2.2.6
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Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets
At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net
worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on eguity investment are routed through Statement of OCI. Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).

i, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing loss
is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCIL.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse
gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency” is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and Habilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
mcurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An itemn of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset [calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 ~ 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

There are assets whose useful life is complete on the date of first time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074)
which are still in use. Management expects that such assets shall be used for three more years;
accordingly, the remaining amount of assets on the date of transition to NFRS is depreciated in
subsequent three years.

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated usefisl lives.

Amortization
Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets. The estimated useful life is of computer software is considered to be five years.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in its
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.
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2.2.9

2.2.10

2.2.11

2.2.12

2.2.13

2.2.14

Salvage Value
Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items of
investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Changes, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Compsehensive that forms
part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to Profit or
Loss.

Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of lean is charged to
profit or loss for the peried of staff loan.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company's equity shares are classified as
equity instruments.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of the
company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined amount to Employee Provident Fund and does not have any legal or
constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees.
The Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with Labor Law of
Nepal. The amount presented in financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting
date.
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Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to emplovees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the abligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax
Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the casrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the reporting
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated reasonably
in accordance with the provisions of Income tax Act as per management assumption and bet judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058, accordingly, tax rate applicable for the company is 21.25%
{previous year rate was 21.25%).

2.2.16 Revenue

Revenue is recognized anly when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable,

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is stated net of Civil Aviation Fee
& Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labour Rules as per the previous agreement between
HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.

Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount
and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain privilege membership fee and training

fees, which are insignificant to the total revenue.
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2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (Chinaj Limited for hotel operation is based on fixed percentage
of the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in the Hotel Management
Agreement.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to L3G Catering Hong Kong Limited, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of 1.8G Sky Chefs’ is based on a fixed percentage of the Net
Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.
2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to

use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain

lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight Kitchen. The
lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with
para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and
infrastructures to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same
amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the
straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions

The Companyapplies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating

cycle ag 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and Habilities,

‘The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies a Hability as current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Segment Reporting

The Company’'s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with

each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.




*3STL.I0J H{(BIIPAR 210 S)9SSE 21 Uaym PUR §¢ Speay 24aR0adsar o} pazentdea aq [[eYs JUNOUIE SUY, "UON[II £/, 'S SIS00 PalB(al I51[}0 PUE WO 9E' 8T Sy SOUBAPE
rendes ‘uomII £g'gT 'Sy SI9SSE JO 1500 sepnpur “0sfo1d Fupired pue jeefoid uswmsed Sury uwelereuny o} pajelel siiom 3y jo sasuxdurod Apofeur LOMONLIISUCD Iapun: $13SSY
woponI)swod Jepun yusmdmby pue jueld ‘Ayradoxg

££9°2S9'88T'T | 96T'ETT'TS 009'98E'SE | ¥10°Z00°BT | 89L‘0ZS | TSO°G9E‘80T | 9LZ9S2'00F | 6¥Z'0T6'0TH | 6LL'B8Y'6VT 9L0Z'S0'TE IV
IY8'E90°IST'T | SIT'IbE'esT | L1S'IZ8'LT | TLV'LBES'TT | ¥2ZT°0S9 | Ze6'STL'SIT | 89€'vIL'EEE | LES'IS6'SSE | 6LL'88V'6PI QLOT'EO'ZE W
¥6L'C6£°TS8 PZRPRTTPT | GU6‘8se’LT | coz'vestyr | ozv'eeo | L1'SE8YHO LSE'09%'297 | vZO°L96'L8T | ST9'68E'59 $L0T PO 1O 3V
anfeA Jood 39N

801°I99°9%Z°T |- TTI‘CPB'LE | Z90'Z6S'OE | 0og‘ebZ'o | GSL'EeL'sbT | 10E°60SPS9 | 60S'6S1'E9T | - 9,07 €0°' 1€ Ju soueeg
{1¥6'186'%E) - (0o6'cet’e) |(zes'zczn) |Wzo'zos) |(sezioor‘in) | WWL9'TTLYT) | (ELT'OLT'Y) - resodsiqy
LTE'SEY'8L - B08°6E6°T 966'v¥L'T 15821 L£8'808°CT 2a8'9659E LLE'BIS'ET - Tead oy} 10] AL
TTL'YSTE0T'T | - $1Z°280°8 | 866°YOT‘SE | LT6'910'0 | OST'ST6°0ET | €TI'HTO'TEY | SOE'96L'EST | - g9L02'£0°Z¢ e sourfeg
(8e9'2zb'cE) - - - lovg'pel) | (061°L9%'L) (gez'ese’sz) | (C16'TH) - Tesodsiq
£9£°98£'8S - T6R'6LY'T 602'829'C 886621 Pl A R £1£'601°0€ 199°8€1°11 - Feak oy 10} 981EYD
L66°S6T°08T°T | - ZTTEL09°GE | 68L°OLY'TE | 6LLITOQ | DLO'TSE‘TET | I8¥'8EP'089 | 988'669°TYT | - +L0Z PO 10 I8 aouE[Rg
8807 JuoutITedu] pue TOTIRID3IN3(]

T¥L'eIE'SES'T | S6T'eTT'es TTL6TT'OL | OLOP6S'PO | STLEOL'O | 908°B60°0Sh | LLS'SOT'SSOT | 8SL'6V0'PLY | 6LL'SEY6VT 9L0Z'E0° 1€ 38 20uE[Rg
(t44'61€'087) | (11r'1es 110 | (e60'vyT'e) | (196°222°T) |{eze'cos) |(168°09+11) | (¥86°80€°ST) | (80+'E66'0) - Iagsuel],/Tesodsiq
TSE'FIF 1EF 1I6TCIF'0OIL | 060°GOS'ET | 89S°6LE6T | - 609'SOGETT | DL0'OETPOT | pEE'SIE'TL - uonIppy
TOS‘8TZ'PSE'Z | STI'TPE'EST | STL'S806°S9 | 69%'T6PO | 1SO'LOT°L | 880'PRO°SSE | T64°8£2°096 | Z¥B'LTL'609 | 6LL'88Y'6VT SLOZ'€0'CE e adured
(ros‘zls 1ot | {98L296'v1Y) |- - {oov'se1) | loot'esg’l) (toc‘czi'62) | (26L°L9) - Iggstrel]/Tesodsiq
9.8 10 €LY LIO'GTTLTT | BAVCPETY | LA4P'TE9T 9¥E'L8 194'6€4'S0 FTO'E9H 0T | 6SO'BTT6L $9T'660'v8 UONIpPY
061'68S°'CE0'T | $TSPSTTHL | LHZ'096'ZS | T66'098'by | SOT'STE'L | L8P L0T'L6T | 8E8‘866'T68 | 085'999'08S | S19°68€'S9 $20Z$0°10 38 20ure[eg

FE)

Creyag - qoﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂom “sopigep | sseyndmsog - unwﬂnmwwwwm mﬁmuouwhw.whrm WMwﬁMme mﬁm.mﬂm EWMMMH& : .. uuﬂﬁuﬁ.ﬂam

'S U1 Junoury

suonrdmby % juerd ‘A31adosd 11°C 9j0N
SITIUISFRIG JLIONBUL] 91} 0 S3J0H
{(610T Amr 91) DL0T PLYSY 1€ 32 5V

QHLINIT TELOH TALTIVOS




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
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Amount in Rs.

S " Particulars - s ] o BoTtware o [ L Petal
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2074 12,926,443 12,926,443
Addition 125,000 125,000
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2074 10,353,077 10,353,077
Charge for the year 888,689 858,689
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 11,241,766 11,241,766
Charge for the year 882,358 882,358
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2074 2,573,366 2,573,366
At 32.03.2075 1,809,677 1,809,677
At 31.03.2076 927,319 927,319
Note 3.3: Investment Property
Amount in Rs.
JEiisonnT i Particulars:civr o000 ] Freehold Land - | 0 Building [0 1 Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2074 4,707,287 109,516,634 114,223,921
Addition - ~ -
Disposal /Transfer - - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 4,707,287 109,516,634 114,223,922
Addition - 56,630,178 56,630,178
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2074 - 73,692,625 73,692,625
Charge for the year - 1,000,965 1,000,965
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 - 74,693,590 74,693,590
Charge for the year - 1,046,523 1,046,523
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2074 4,707,287 35,824,009 40,531,296
At 32.03.2075 4,707,287 34,823,044 39,530,332
At 31.03.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
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SCALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Asseis

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the
Company (21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise
to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 01.04.2075 | Credit/[Charge) | Credit/(Charee) | 31.03.2076
Fixed Assets (12,382,800} {11,583,245) - (23,966,043)
Gratuity Provision 53,114,795 2,549,974 - 55,664,769
Provision for Leave 22,138,654 2,132,326 - 24,270,980
Trade and Other Receivable 6,716,978 1,700 - 6,718,678
Total 69,587,627 (6,899,245) - 62,688,382
Particulars 01.04.2074 c’e‘éitggll};rge’ Cmdif)/ gé‘la’ge’ 32.03.2075
Fixed Assets {1,211,548) (11,171,252) - {12,382,800)
Gratuity Provision 56,409,899 (3,295,104} - 53,114,795
Provision for Leave 20,523,228 1,615,426 - 22,138,654
Trade and Other Receivable 6,405,550 311,428 - 6,716,978
Total 82,127,129 (12,539,502) - 69,587,627
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
, Particulars |  31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through QCI 283,898,980 284,377,323
Total 283,898,980 284,377,323
Current
At Amaortized Cost 90,000,000 70,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI
Total 90,000,000 70,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost {A) 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Term Deposit 90,000,000 70,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 90,000,000 70,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI {B)
Investment in Subsidiaries
I:aig)oaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. {99,500 shares of Rs. 100 9,950,000 9,950,000
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000 230,000,000
Advance for Investment in Soaltee Hospitality Lid. 12,640,000 12,640,000
Sub-total 272,590,000 272,590,000
Investment in Asscciates
H 1 Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment (16,538) (16,538)
Sub-total - -
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. {100,000 shares of Rs. 11,308,980 11,787,323
100 each)
Sub-total 11,308,980 11,787,323
Total Investment through OCI 283,898,980 284,377,323
Proportion of voting rights
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 73.63% 73.63%
Soaltee Hospitality Lid. 100% 100%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

The net worth of H 1 Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly,
impairment has been accounted.




SCALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
Asg at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019}
HNotes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable
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Amount in Rs.

oy  Particulars - " /31.03.2076 " | 82/03.2075 .
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 2,993,083 2,962,083
Deposits 3,722,464 3,401,504
Loans and Advances to Employees 35,397,323 41,030,583
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,512,234 3,753,184
Total 50,675,523 58,228,773
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 43,624,104 51,177,354
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 225,814,901 260,668,900

Less: Allowance for Impairment

(24,565,887)

(24,557,890)

Trade Receivable-Net

201,249,014

236,111,010

Other Receivable

Loans and Advances to Employees 32,061,729 14,953,517
Loans and Advances to Other 25,271,484 13,213,876
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 7,229,735 10,206,963
VAT Recoverable 19,669,757 -
Management Fees Recoverable - 8,047,756
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,636,459 1,379,847
Total Other Receivable 85,869,164 47,801,959
Total 287,118,178 283,912,969

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in
Current Recelvable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

e v Particulars :31.08.2076 | _
Stores and Spares 11,918,313 14,167,943
Provision, Beverage and Others 22,937,641 21,811,802
Uniform and Linen 34,808,046 24,059,452
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 27,731,770 28,546,740
Total 97,395,770 38,585,937

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent
PO S " Particulars: - - 81.03.2076 {32.03.2075
Cash in Hand 2,006,422 2,954,082
Cheques in Hand - 236,398
Balances with Bank 193,147,401 166,192,667
Total 195,153,823 169,383,147
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Aghad 2076 (16 July 2019}
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31.03.2076

t

32.03.2075

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 } 1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

75,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each | 750,000,000 [ 750,000,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid up
73,267,537 Bhares of Rs.10/- each 732,675,370 666,063,740
Total 732,675,370 666,063,740
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Balance at the beginning of the year 66,606,374 57,918,130
Add: Bonus Issue 6,661,163 8,683,244
Add: Right Issue - -
Balance at the end of year 73,267,537 66,606,374
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
: Particulars 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,308,981 1,787,324
Retained Earnings 835,578,211 711,651,810
Total 895,374,380 | 771,926,322
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
S _ Particulars | 21.03.2076 | 32.03.2075
Non-Current
Bank loans
Secured- Hire Purchase 3,746,371 4,994,449
Total 3,746,371 4,994,449
Current
Curtent portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,161,908 845,838
Total 1,161,908 845,838
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
D e . Particulars -1 -31.08.2076 | 82,08.2075.°
Non-Current
Gratuity 329,414,263 317,491,891
Less: Plan Assets (67,462,410} (67,5392,915)
Net Gratuity Liability 261,951,853 249,951,976
Accumulated Leave 114,216,378 104,181,901
Total 376,168,231 354,133,877
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 18,550,702 16,210,711
Bonus Payable 38,391,314 36,209,969
Total 56,942,016 52,420,680




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Wotes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

“oPgrticulars

Co) 31:08.2076° | 32.03.2075 .

Advance Income Tax

86,783,293 59,923,398

Income Tax liability

(78,002,937) | (70,321,990)

Total

8,780,356 | ({10,398,592)

Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable

el Particulars - o]l 81.03.2076 | 82.03.2075 -
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 13,788,789 14,452,666
Unclaimed Dividend 9,078,785 6,534,596
Total 22,867,574 20,987,262
Current
Sundry Creditors f 156,483,135 | 137,525,647
Other Payable
Advances Received 94,527,613 67,251,560
Management Fee 2,555,982 -
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 989,489 1,185,308
VAT Payable - 3,535,496
Service Charge 47,808,817 44,905,028
Housing Fund 26,334,029 36,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 7,817,951 4,827,841
Other Liabilities 48,003,317 50,068,507
Total 384,520,333 345,633,416

Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.

Please refer Note 4.5 for additional information on advances received.

Note 3.15; Revenue from Operation

: i ‘Particulars: . 4

Room 534,342,033 442,420,291
Food 1,136,519,383 | 1,060,626,267
Beverage 52,743,322 52,574,848
Cigar and Cigarettes 628,875 391,715
Telephone 190,837 237,225
Laundry Income 7,808,738 7,200,632
Beauty Parlor 130,430 640,343
Swimming Pool, Health Club, Guest Membership Fee 1,684,252 4,410,641
Business Centre 109,170 105,969
‘Fotal 1,734,157,040 | 1,568,907,931

Note 3.16: Other Income

: 207
Premises Rental Charge 31,977,130 26,799,554
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 4,585,201 4,412,861
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 9,219,153 8,503,569
Miscellaneous Receipts 18,975,076 10,584,539
Income from Service Charge 31,472,247 35,811,425
Dividend Income 500,000 500,000
Profit on sale of assets 2,095,046 1,325,488
Exchange gain - 7,255,019
Unclaimed Balance Written Back 1,347,656 164,452
Total 100,171,509 95,296,907
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SCALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 31 Ashad 2076 |16 July 2019)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

- Particulars = . 207576 . | 207475
Food 287,549,636 273,864,950
Beverage 13,784,769 13,530,000
Cigarettes 212,370 162,035
Total 301,546,775 | 287,556,985

Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses
oo . ‘Particulars 207576 - | 207475
Salary and Wages 270,059,262 240,053,552
Allowances 115,106,356 95,243,801
Festival Allowance 23,322,234 19,689,532
Overtime 14,381,603 12,324,673
Employees Meal 26,263,356 22,413,330
Soaltee Staff Welfare/SSF Contribution 5,373,590 4,882,792
Gratuity 18,585,224 31,231,538
Leave 11,833,952 15,290,670
Provident Fund 21,820,967 18,249,957
Clinic Expenses 1,132,550 1,336,476
Amortization of Staff Loan 4,735,935 2,484,437
Bonus 38,391,314 36,209,969
Total 551,006,843 | 499,410,727
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses
o Particulars . @ SLOTS-T6 L 20T4-TE
Linen 9,303,312 10,062,645
Laundry Supplies 4,526,790 2,889,990
Crockery & Cutlery 2,397,354 3,584,437
Silverware 1,473,529 744,468
Cleaning Supplies 9,124,431 9,602,449
F & B Paper Supplies 9,815,901 9,116,335
Guest Supplies 19,330,124 18,442,064
Water & Water Treatment 17,791,246 16,787,737
Garden Maintenance 308,373 -
Pest Control ) 2,277,000 2,160,000
Waste Removal 895,700 1,004,637
Power and Fuel 129,655,816 121,044,061
Repair and Maintenance 39,160,209 25,842,181
Total 246,059,785 | 221,281,004
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Note 3.20: Other Expenses
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Amqunt in Rs.

N N S EOPES “Particulars’ iU e 1 2075-76- 1207475
Rental Charges 1,017,420 976,484
Travelling 7,413,021 9,230,378
Transport and Conveyance 25,056,031 22,852,007
Audit Fee 525,000 399,300
Legal and Professional Fees 4,720,825 8,400,067
Directors’ Meeting Fees 1,182,349 1,005,879
Licence& Taxes 32,199,456 27,206,321
Bank Charges 9,983,203 8,765,808
Annual General Meeting Expenses 858,574 1,091,772
Commissions 4,314,115 4,950,194
Insurance 22,645,808 16,475,883
Communication Expenses 7,243,321 7,071,529
Printing and Stationery 5,858,684 4,997,589
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 20,405,513 16,256,633
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 17,146,661 14,586,891
Training and Conference 3,152,514 2,527,774
Donation - 30,000
Books and Newspaper 414,359 425,687
Membership & Subscription 2,005,802 1,695,777
Security Services 7,073,255 5,182,422
Uniform Expenses 3,976,793 6,670,145
Entertainment 739,436 1,641,247
Allowance for Impairment 2,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 4,219,370 4,918,756
Banquet Expenses 15,530,231 5,587,500
Kitchenette Expenses 2,771,371 4,273,462
Exchange Loss 1,815,126 -
Corporate Social Responsibility 2,990,110 2,792,382
Miscellaneous 10,448,680 3,454,869
Total 220,807,028 188,466,756

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a
capitalization, bonus issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

The Company has issued bonus shares in previous years. Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
shall has been done as stated above.

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 299,010,958 279,238,206
Number of shares 73,267,537 73,267,537
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 4.08 3.81

Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year

299,010,958

279,238,206

Weighted average number of shares

73,267,537

73,267,537

Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.}

4.08

3.81
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SCALTEEHOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instrumentsare classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values are determined
according to the following hierarchy:

The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities.
Fair value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value
of category of financial assets/liabilities.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
{accounting value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or Habilities.

Amount in Rs.

- As at 31.03.2076 l Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 " Level 3

Financial Asgsets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 327,593,589 327,593,589
Investment 90,000,000 90,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 195,153,823 195,153,823
Total At Amortized Cost 612,747,412 612,747,412
Financial Assets at Fair Value throughOther Comprehensive Income (FVOCI]
Investment 283,898,980 283,898,980
Total Financial Assets 896,646,392 - 896,646,392
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 407,387,907 407,387,907
Loans and Borrowings 4,908,279 4,908,279
Total Financial Liabilities 412,296,186 - 412,296,186

-7 As at 32.03.2075 | carrying Amount | Leveil | Level2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 329,957,292 329,057,292
Investment 70,000,000 70,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 169,383,147 169,383,147
Total At Amortized Cost 569,340,439 569,340,439
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [(FVOCI)
Investment [ 284,377,323 | | 284,377,323
Total Financial Assets | 853,717,762 | .| s8s3,717,762
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 366,620,678 366,620,678
Loans and Borrowings 5,840,287 5,840,287
Total Financial Liabilities 372,460,965 - 372,460,965
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4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid
up equity share capital.

4.2 Dividend
Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.
Board of Directors have proposed 15% bonus shares and 11.31578947% cash dividend for the year
2075-76 (previous year approved 10% bonus shares and 16.31578947% cash dividend). Accordingly,
the total distribution by the company from the profits arising from 2075-76 is as follows:

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend
Proposed for 2075-76 109,901,306 82,908,002
Number of shares 10,990,131
Paid for 2074-75 (Amount] 66,611,630 108,673,558
No. of shares 6,661,163

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company in
excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in
Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movernent on
this reserve since then.

¢. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to pravide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments
that are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

¢. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the first
time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity
Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company was
required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of
the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration
as gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. Such amount is required to be paid /
deposited to Social Security Fund.

Opening Liability 317,491,891 302,770,943
Payment Made (6,662,852) (16,510,592)
Additional Provision (as per then existing provision) - 17,671,099
Additional Provision @8.33% 18,585,224 13,560,439
Closing liability 329,414,263 317,491,891

The Company is yet to make payout of the gratuity in Social Security Fund.
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Bh. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee Hability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of

liability is as follows:

oI U Particulars 207876 | 207475
Opening Liability 104,181,901 96,579,895
Service Cost 7,084,177 10,817,879
Interest Cost 7,229,749 6,491,488
Plan Amendment - (342,102}
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) 5,593,297 (1,676,595)
Benefit Paid (1,799,475} (7,688,664)
Closing Liability {A) 122,289,649 104,181,901
Liability recognized in the financial statements {B) 114,216,378 104,181,901
Deferred Liability {(A-B}) 8,073,271 -

Out of the total leave liability of Rs. 122,289,649 as on 16 July 2019 determined by the actuary,
only Rs. 114,216,378 has dheen recognized in the financial statements and balance of Rs.
8,073,271 has been deferred to be recognized in the future years as per the decision of the
management. This is not in line with the accounting policy adopted by the Company to account for
long term liabilities.

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:

. Sodsgesn tede Particulare e U i Dl e el o 0TBAT6 L ROTANE
Discount rate 7% 7%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 15 15
Average duration of liabilities 17 16

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave Hability.

Partionlarg -0

2075-76

07475

Effect on

- Service Cost

(913,985)

{1,507,740)

- Interest Cost

1,032,820

927,623

- Leave Liability

(12,582,707)

(11,310,316}

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,113,886 1,858,466
- Interest Cost {1,032,820) (927,353)
- Leave Liability 14,932,148 13,468,773
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4.5 Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 15 years. The future
minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

L . Period . 207576 | 0 207475
Up to one year 1,045,560 962,052
One to five years 4,182,240 4,810,260
Above five years 648,476 598,317
Total 5,876,276 6,370,629

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on
lease. Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Ll e peried T e i ] 207576 | 2074

Up to one year 36,382,104 25,680,027
One to five years 120,225,566 110,299,348
Above five years 470,367,452 399,517,808
Total 626,975,122 | 535,497,183

Health Club/Spa property under construction

The Company has entered into a leasing arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets with
cancellable condition and clauses with Dhanwantari Spa And Wellness Pvt. Ltd. (party] for
construction and subsequent use of wellness center (building for Health Club-Spa) at the premise of
the Company. As per the arrangement, all the construction works of the building is being done by the
party on behalf of the Company and such assets being developed is included in Investment Property of
the company. The party will operate the Spa for the defined period under the agreement for which the
party shall pay some portion of its total lease rental in cash and remaining portion is adjusted against
the cost incurred by the party for construction. The rental income as per the lease agreement has been
commenced w.e.f. 1 January 2019, however, the capitalization of the property was made on 30 June
2019 upon receipt of completion certificate from the contractor.

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided Rs. 2.99 million (previcus year Rs. 2.79 million} (1% of net
profit after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 48 {1) of the Industrial
Enterprises Act 2073.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of
its financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set aprropriate
risk limits and contrels and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
i. Market Risk
Inspite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the company through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk

The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit
facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company debtors'
ability to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly there exist the
credit risks to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years has been
managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular
recoverability position by the management and the Board.
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iii. Liquidity Risk

The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The
Company monitors ite liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and
forecasting.

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

Operational Risk

The Company has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and
implemented various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of
authority for the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also
follow specific operating guidelines issued by its franchise, Company believes that the controls
implemented by the company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The
franchise also carries out Control Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the company
scored high level marks placing it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being
managed by Franchise.

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company’s revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation
so be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation wilk
contribute certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will
have the risk of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange
rate fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of oceasional down turn movement
as well, The Company has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the company comprises of key management personnel, organization having
significant influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company has made investment in two subsidiary companies. The Company has presence on
the Board of these two companies in proportion of its shareholding. Company provides office space
to the two subsidiaries on operating lease. Other than this, there is no any transaction with
subsidiary companies.

H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Lid.

Lease rental income

Soaltee Hospitality Ltd.

Lease rental income

Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:

i, Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL}
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd, (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667
{previous year Rs. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at
the year end.

Other related entities

i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one
representative in the Board of SHL.
SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Flight Catering Services
Tickets Purchase - 1.56
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ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

d. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition of
Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt, Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Lid.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Venkatesh Gomatam Director Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Vivek Bhalla egs;;?zzl? ggggi;&Mr' Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for
attending each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other
Committee meetings during the year aunounts to Rs. 1.18 million (previous year Rs. 1.00 million).

e. Hey Management Personnel

The company's key management personnel are Executive Chairman and General Manager.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs, 37.49 million (previous
year Rs. 32.03 million), The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of the Company.

Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 9.08 million (previous year Rs. 6.53 million).

Trade and Other Receivable

Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on In flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted
to Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million ) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected
under Non-current Trade and other receivables.

Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed by Jet
Alrways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the insolvency
proceeding is yet to be decided, separate impairment allowance has not been created.

Lien on company's assets

The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan
against a vehicle only amounting to Rs. 4.90 million (previous year Rs. 5.84 million).

Contingent Liability

The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or comparny as a present obligation as a result
of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation: or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate
reflection in the current financial vear,
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Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Rs. 2.9 million (previous year Rs. 2.9
miltion)

Litigations or legal cases

i. Income tax BMatters

Revenue Tribunal has decided in company's favour against the appeal made relating to
assessment pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the
Honourable Supreme Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. The company is of the
opinion that there would not be significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the
Court.

ii. Assessment status

The Company has appealed to Revernue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses ont Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

iii. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by the company against Government of Nepal for its demand
of Casino Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 {2062/63) till November 2012 {24 Kartik 2069)
from the company instead of then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was
issued in favour of the company from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly,the
management considers that no further obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such
Royalty and no provisions for the additional claim has been made.

iv: Arbitration
The company has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgment of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filted by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases

The company has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its
regular business.

Capital Commitment
Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 110.92 million
{Previous year Rs. 131.55 million).

Letter of Credit

There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour
law in previous fiscal year, this fund is no longer required and no provisionhas been made. The
Company has paid Rs. 10 millien {previous year Rs. 20 million) during the year out of this fund to a
separate entity called Employee Housing.

Operating Segment

Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into two operating
segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

2

i. Core hotel business segment: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related
recreational facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major
segment.

ii. Flight catering segment: The Company provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and
related facilities to meet its standards.

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:



2@p
Yty B
arilbo
eiThlen
o e

soaltee Hotel Limited
% * # & b 4

{Amount in millions})

Op erating Segmtm Operation-
Revenue
- Food 529.96 606.56 1,136.52
- Room 534.34 534.34
- Beverage 50.55 2.19 52.74
- Others 6.16 4,39 10.55
Interest Incomne 13.81 13.81
Other Income 86.37 86.37
Total Revenue 1,221.19 613.14 1,834.33
Expenses®
Consumption Cost 154.38 147.17 301.55
Employee Benefit Expenses 451.01 100.00 551.01
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 27943 237.33 516.76
Depreciation and Amortization 73.37 7.00 80.37
Finance Cost 0.73 0.73
Total Expenses 958.92 491.50 1,450.42
Segment Result 262.27 121.64 383.91
Income Tax 84.90
Profit for the period 299,01
Segment Assets 2,344.25 129.21 2,473.46
Segment Liabilities** 2,473.46

*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

**  Segment wise Habilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

4.19  Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
company. The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based on
management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient
capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a
focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company's will take appropriate
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the
return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to
be able to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future
periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

4.20 Regrouping and around off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019), the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in alt
material respects, the consclidated financial position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16
July 2019), and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in Note 4.4 b, out of the total leave liability of Rs 122,289,649 as on 16 July 2019
determined by the actuary, only Rs 114,216,378 has been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements and balance of Rs 8,073,271 has been deferred to be recognized in the future years
as per the decision of the management. This is not in line with the accounting policy adopted by
the Company to account for long term labilities on accrual basis. Had the total leave iiability
determined by the actuary been recognized in the consolidated financial statement, the total
expenses would have increased by Rs 8,073,271 with corresponding decrease in bonus and
profits for the year and increase in non-current liabilities by Rs 8,073,271,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further descrihed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Quaiified Opinion section, we have determined that
there are no other key audit matters {0 communicate in our report.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of 2 subsidiaries, “HI
Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt Ltd and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd" whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs 290.73 million and net assets of Rs 290.44 million as at 16 July 2019 and net
profit of Rs 1.64 million and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 1.45 million for the year then ended.
These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 September 2019 and 18
November 2018, respectively. Those reports have been furnished to us by the management, and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the accounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Cther Legal and Regutatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

124, L.al Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel:+ 977 01 4410927, +977 01 4420026, Fax: +977 014413307 pkf.trunco.con.np
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of ihese consolidated
financial statements in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and {o
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audii conducted in accordance with NSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

8 ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group fo cease to continue as a going concern.

= Eyaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an cpinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other malters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal eontro! that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the consclidated statement
of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2018}, the consolidated statement of profit or
foss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063, and are in agreement with the books of account
maintained by Parent Company except for the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph; and proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Parent Company
-and its subsidiaries included In the Group including relevant records relating to preparation of the
aforesald consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and records of the Parent Company and the reports of the other
auditors.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from
our examination of the books of account of the Parent Company and the audit reports issued by
other auditors necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come across cases where
Board of Directors or any employees of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries have acted
contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation or
caused loss or damage to the Group relating to the accounts in the Parent Company and s
subsidiaries.

Shashi Satyal
Pariner

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

124 Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 18 November 2018 (2 Mangsir 2076)
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
¥or the period ended on 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1,

2.1.
2.1.1.

2.1.2,

2.1.3,

General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the
Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its
incorporation more than 50 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five star
quality hotel facilities from the date of commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely
H 1 Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business.
Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Socaltee Sibkrim Hotels
and Resorts Pvt, Ltd. with 24% share in the company.

Holiday Inns (China) Limited, an Intercontinental Hotels Group (IHG) owned company operates the 282
saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites under the Hotel Management Agreement with the
Company. The Company also operates a LSG Sky Chef - Flight Catering Unit under a Technical
Assistance Agreement with LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong.

The consalidated financial statements is prepared by consolidating the financial statements of Soaltee
Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL}, H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary with 72.63% holding)
and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% Subsidiary), collectively stated as “the Group” hereinafter. The Group’s
principal activity is to invest in hotel industry. The Group has invested hotels in Kathmandu and
Nepalgunj.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors
on 18 November 2019 {02Mangsir 2076} and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

Basis of Measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the

following material items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value

- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.

- Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the
obligation

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting

Standards (NFRS} requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires

management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The Group

makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are

continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, inchuding expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ

from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are:

a} Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property,Plant and Equipment
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those asseis have suffered an
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impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use, Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commaodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates
and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned
factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

c¢) Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets
are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the
management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits
Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused /accumulated leave by the staif and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination
of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate,
rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may
change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the Group.

2.1.4, Functional and Presentation Currency

2.2,

2.2.1.

2.2.2

The Consolidated financial staternents are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also
the Group’s functional currency.

Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where
significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their
effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

Basis of Consolidation

Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it is classified as a subsidiary. The
consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group and its subsidiaries {*the Group™ as if
they formed a single entity.

Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are
combined line by line by adding the like items of assets, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to SHL has opted for carve out alternative accounting treatment
issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting policies for like transactions in consolidation of
financial statements. Under the carve out alternative treatment, the investment made in associate by
SHL’s fully owned subsidiary is measured at cost instead of measuring it using equity method.

Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial

assets.
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Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out issued by ICAN
for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

i. Recognition
The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
A financial asset or financial lability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets
The classfication and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the
entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine
whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income {‘FVOCT)) or fair value through profit or loss {FVPL).

- At amortized cost:
Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Group has intent and ability to held till maturity. They are initially
recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

- At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the company manages such
instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value. Attributable
transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

- At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the
above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at
fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which are recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented in the fair valie reserve in equity. When an
investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial Habilities are recognirzed initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition
Financial Assets
The Group derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets {or the
carTying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii} any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (CCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

iv. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Amortized cost measurement

‘The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

Identification and measurement of impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

—~  significant financial difficulty of the debtor

—  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

-~ observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the assef's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net
worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCIL Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing loss
is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates, Impairment charges are inchaded in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse
gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economiic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency” is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment

items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present valué of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost,

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives,

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Egtimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

There are assets whose useful life is complete on the date of first time adoption of NFRS (1 shrawan 2074}
which are still in use. Management expects that such assets shall be used for three more years;
accordingly, the remaining amount of assets on the date of transition to NFRS is depreciated in
subsequent three years.

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

Amortization
Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets. The estimated useful life is of computer software is considered to be five years.

2.2,8 Investment Property
The Group holds certain assets {land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in its
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same armount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method,
in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.
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Salvage Value
Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items of
investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

investments

Investments in shares of tlie companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Changes, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive that forms
part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to Profit or
Loss.

Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly Liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s equity shares are classified as
equity instruments.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of the
company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Flan

Companies of the Group pays pre-defined amount to Employee Provident Fund and does not have any
legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

Group is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. The Group
accrues 8.33% of basic salary as gratuity benefits in accordance with the Labor Law of Nepal. The amount
presented in financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.
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Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annuat leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the reporting
date and any adjustment to tax payahble in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated reasonably
in accordance with the provisions of Income tax Act as per management assumption and bet judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058, accordingly, tax rate applicable for the company is 21.25%
{previous year rate was 21.25%j.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the group
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is stated net of Civil Aviation Fee
& Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labor Rules as per the previous agreement between
HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount
and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain privilege membership fee and training
fees, which are insignificant to the total revenue.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.
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2.2.20

Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (China} Limited for hotel operation is based on fixed percentage
of the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in the Hotel Management
Agreement.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of LSG Sky Chefs’ is based on a fixed percentage of the Net
Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight Kitchen. The lease
rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with para
33 of NAS 17: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures to
third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as
operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line method,
in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Provisions
The Groupapplies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for non-
financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
leasttwelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

» Itis expected to be setitled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting peried.

The Group ciassifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




2.2.21

2.2.22

Segment Reporting

The Group’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's management
of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenrue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with
each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

Operating Cycle
The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
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Amount in Rs.

G - Particuldrs oo 0 - Boftware ] Total -
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2074 12,926,443 12,926,443
Addition 125,000 125,000
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2074 10,353,077 10,353,077
Charge for the vear 888,689 888,689
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 11,241,766 11,241,766
Charge for the year 882,358 882,358
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2074 2,573,366 2,573,366
At 32.03.2075 1,809,677 1,809,677
At 31.03.2076 927,319 927,319
Note 3.3: Investment Property
Amount in Rs.
= | #Freehold:Land: > -Building o
Cost . .
Balance at 01.04.2074 4,707,287 109,516,634 114,223,921
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 4,707,287 | 109,516,634 114,223,922
Addition - 56,630,178 56,630,178
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2074 - 73,692,625 73,692,625
Charge for the year - 1,000,965 1,000,965
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2075 - 74,693,590 74,693,590
Charge for the year - 1,046,523 1,046,523
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2074 4,707,287 35,824,009 40,531,296
At 32.03.2075 4,707,287 34,823,044 39,530,332
At 31.03.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 {16 July 2019)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company.
Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

|- Credit/(Charge).
1 teoer

181.03.2076

(23,966,045)

ixed Assets {12,382,800) {11,583,245) -
Gratuity Provision 53,114,795 2,549,974 - 55,664,769
Provision for Leave 22,138,654 2,132,326 - 24,270,980
Trade and Other Receivable 6,716,978 1,700 - 6,718,678
Total 69,587,627 {6,899,245) - 62,688,382

Credit/(Charge)

Fixed Assets (1,211,548} (1 - (12,382,800}
Gratuity Provision 56,409,899 (3,285,104) - 53,114,795
Provision for Leave 20,523,228 1,615,426 - 22,138,654
Trade and Other Receivable 6,405,550 311,428 - 6,716,978
Total 82,127,129 {(12,539,502) - 69,587,627
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount inn Rs.

31i03.2076 32:03:2075
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI 273,148,980 273,627,323
Total 273,148,980 273,627,323
Current
At Amortized Cost 100,000,000 80,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total 100,000,000 80,000,000

Investment comprises the following:

At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2076 32,08.2075
Term Deposit 100,000,000 80,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 100,000,000 80,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK§ 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment {16,538) {16,538)
Net investment - -
Soaltee Sibkirm Hotels and Resorts Pvt, Lid. 261,840,000 261,840,000
Suh-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 11,308,980 11,787,323
{100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each)
Sub-total 11,308,980 11,787,323
Total Investment through OCI 273,148,980 273,627,323
Proportion of voting rights '
Soaltee Sibkirm Hotels and Resorts Pvt, 1td, 24% 24%
H 1 Sealtee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 6% 6%

The net worth of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly, impairment
has been accounted.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable
Amount in Rs.

e : ¥ Particulays’ 1/31.03.2076 "] 732.03.2075
Non-Current

Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Beposit for Appeal 2,992,083 2,992,083
Deposits 3,722,464 3,421,504
Loans and Advances to Employees 35,397,323 41,030,583
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,512,234 3,753,184
Total 50,675,523 58,248,773
Less: Allowance for Impairment {7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 43,624,104 51,197,354
Current

Trade Receivable

Trade Receivable 225,814,901 260,668,900

Less: Allowance for Impairment (24,565,887) (24,557,890)
Trade Receivable-Net 201,249,014 236,111,010
Other Receivable

Loans and Advances to Employees 32,061,729 14,953,517
Loans and Advances to Other 25,271,484 13,213,876
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 7,229,735 10,206,963
VAT Recoverable 19,669,757 -
Management Fees Recoverable - 8,047,756
Others 377,287 294,130
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,636,459 1,379,847
Total Other Receivable 86,246,451 418,096,089
Total 287,495,465 284,207,099

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing.Additional information on Trade receivable included in

Current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

- o 32.03.207
Stores and Spares 11,918,313 14,167,943
Provision, Beverage and Others 22,937,641 21,811,802
Uniform and Linen 34,808,046 24,059,452
Crockery, Cutlery etc, 27,731,770 28,546,740
Total 97,395,770 88,585,937

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash in Hand 2,006,422 2,954,082
Cheque in Hand - 236,398
Balances with Bank 211,469,634 183,062,239
Total 213,476,056 186,252,719
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

o DarHloulars L i ]

31.03.2076 |

32.03.2075

. Aunthorized Shé.re Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/~ each l

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

75,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each | 750,000,000 | 750,000,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid up
72,267,537 Shares of Rs.10/- each 732,675,370 666,063,740
‘Total 732,675,370 666,063,740
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
L ieioviones Particulargs o 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Balance at the beginning of the year 66,606,374 57,918,130
Add: Bonus Issue 6,661,163 8,688,244
Add: Right Issue - -
Balance at the end of year 73,267,537 66,606,374
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Sharcholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
: e Partieulars ol p i e 0 31,08, 20065 32.03.2075:
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investinent 1,308,981 1,787,324
Retained Earnings 845,943,340 720,771,637
Total 905,739,509 781,046,149
Note 3.11: Non-Controlling Interest
L P&l’tfﬂﬁlal‘s e e SR R T T '31.03.2078: |- 32:03.2075:
Share Capital 3,563,600 3,563,600
Retained Earnings 3,917,532 3,518,525
Total 7,481,132 7,082,125
Note 3.12: Loans and Borrowings
Particulags oot o ek b 31,08.2076% [ 32.03.2075 "
Non-Current
Bank loans
Secured- Hire Purchase 3,746,371 4,994,449
Total 3,746,371 4,994,449
Current
Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,161,908 845,338
Total 1,161,908 845,838
Note 3.13: Employee Benefits
aa sParticulars’ ino e e ] 2 31,03.2076° -} 32.03.2075 7
Non-Current
Gratuity '~ 329,414,263 317,491,891
Less: Plan Assets (67,462.410) (67,539,915)
Net Gratuity Liability 261,951,853 249,951,976
Accumulated Leave 114,216,378 104,181,901
Total 376,168,231 354,133,877
Current
Saldry-and Wages Payable 18,550,702 16,210,711
Bonus Payable 38,391,314 36,209,969
’_I‘otal 56,942,016 52,420,680
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As at 31 Ashad 2076 {16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.14: Income Tax Receivable/{Payable)
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Amount in Rs.

Gl R T e s Partieulars 31.03.2076. - |- 32:03.2075
Advance Income Tax 87,476,269 60,725,906
Income Tax Hability (78,508,597 {70,870,345)
Total 8,967,672 (10,144,439}

Note 3.15: Trade and Other Payable

Lian i . 31.03,2076. | 1 32.03.2075 .
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 13,788,789 14,452,666
Unclaimed Dividend 9,078,785 6,334,596
Total 22,867,574 20,987,262

| Current
Sundry Creditors 156,727,911 | 137,960,498
Other Payable
Advances Received 94,527,613 67,251,560
Management Fee 2,555,982 -
Flight Kitichen Franchise Fee 989,480 1,185,308
VAT Pavable - 3,533,496
Service Charge 47,808,817 44,905,028
Housing Fund 26,334,029 36,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 7,817,951 4,827 841
Other Liabilities 48,049,117 50,119,561
Total 384,810,908 346,119,321

Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.

Please refer Note 4.5 for additional information on advances received,

Note 3.16: Revenue from Operation

{Particulars 2078-76 0 R0TATS L
Room 534,342,033 442 420,291
Food 1,136,519,383 1,060,626,267
Beverage 52,743,322 52,574,848
Cigar and Cigarettes 628,875 391,715
Telephone 190,837 237,225
Laundry Income 7,808,738 7,500,632
Beauty Parlor 130,430 640,343
Swimming Pool, Health Club, Guest Membership Fee 1,684,252 4,410,641
Business Centre 109,170 105,969
Total 1,734,157,040 | 1,568,907,931

Note 3.17: Other Income
e e e pavbionlars 207860 [0 207478 5
Premises Rental Charge 31,843,796 26,666,220
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 4,585,201 4,412,861
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 11,419,976 10,839,938
Miscellaneous Receipts 18,975,076 10,584,539
Income from Service Charge 31,472,247 35,811,425
Dividend Income 500,000 500,000
Profit on Sale of Assets 2,095,046 1,325,488
Exchange Gain - 7,255,019
Others 443,867 294,130
Unclaimed Balance Written Back 1,347,656 104,452
Total 102,682,865 97,794,072

Hotel Linie
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.18: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs,

Particulars. o T 7 207576 . 20747510
Food 287,549,636 273,864,950
Beverage 13,784,769 13,530,000
Cigarettes 212,370 162,035
Total 301,546,775 287,556,985

Note 3.19: Employee Benefit Expenses

i - Particulars .70 L OTBG . 20TATE I
Salary and Wages 270,059,262 240,053,552
Allowances 115,106,356 95,243,801
Festival Allowance 23,322,234 19,689,532
Overtime 14,381,603 12,324,673
Employees Meal 26,263,856 22,413,330
Soaltee Staff Welfare/SSF Contribution 5,373,590 4,882,792
Gratuity 18,585,224 31,231,538
Leave 11,833,952 15,290,670
Provident Fund 21,820,967 18,249,957
Clinic Expenses 1,132,550 1,336,476
Amortization of staff loan 4,735,935 2,484,437
Bonus 38,391,314 36,209,969
Total 551,006,843 499,410,727

Note 3.20: Operating Expenses

2075-76

074-75

Linen 9,303,312 10,062,645
Laundry Supplies 4,526,790 2,889,990
Crockery & Cutlery 2,397,354 3,584,437
Silverware 1,473,529 744,468
Cleaning Supplies 9,124,431 9,602,449
F & B Paper Supplies 9,815,901 9,116,335
Guest Supplies 19,330,124 18,442,064
Water & Water Treatment 17,791,246 16,787,737
Garden Maintenance 308,373 -
Pest Control 2,277,000 2,160,000
Waste Removal 895,700 1,004,637
Power and Fuel 129,655,816 121,044,061
Repair and Maintenance 39,160,209 25,842,181
Total 246,059,785 221,281,004
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As at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019}
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 3.21: Other Expenses
Amount in Rs.
Ceriil ey Partienlare s T 0 e s 20T BT Y 3074:75
Rental Charges 1,017,420 976,484
Travelling 7,413,021 9,230,378
Transport and Conveyance 25,061,681 22,852,007
Audit Fee 615,400 489,700
Legal and Professional Fees 4,777,325 8,795,567
Directors’ Meeting Fees 1,182,349 1,005,879
Licence & Taxes 32,349,456 27,206,321
Bank Charges 9,983,203 8,765,808
Annual General Meeting Expenses 858,574 1,091,772
Commissions 4,314,115 4,950,194
Insurance 22,645,808 16,475,883
Communication Expenses 7,245,581 7,073,789
Printing and Stationery 5,858,684 5,000,598
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 20,405,513 16,256,633
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 17,146,661 14,586,891
Training and Conference 3,152,514 2,527,774
Donation - 30,000
Books and Newspaper 414,359 425,687
Membership & Subscription 2,005,802 1,695,777
Security Services 7,073,255 5,182,422
Uniform Expenses 3,976,793 6,670,145
Entertainment ) 739,436 1,641,247
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 4,219,370 4,918,756
Banquet Expenses 15,530,231 5,587,500
Kitchenette Expenses 2,771,371 4,273,462
Exchange Loss 1,915,126 -
Corporate Social Responsibility 2,990,110 2,792,382
Miscellaneous 10,503,260 3,470,180
Total 221,166,418 188,973,236

Note 3.22: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a
capitalization, bonus issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

SHL has issued bonus shares in previous years. Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall has

been done as stated above.

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 300,655,204 280,680,536
Number of shares 73,267,537 73,267,537
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.} 4.10 3.83

Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year

300,655,264

280,680,536

Weighted average number of shares

73,267,537

73,267,537

Diluted Earnings per share {Rs.)

4.10

3.83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.23: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or Hahility, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
{accounting value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities.

Amount in Rs,
7 Asat 31.03.2076 . . . | Carrying Amount | Level 1. | Level2 | - Level 3
Financial Assets

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Receivable 327,970,876 327,970,876
Investment 100,000,000 100,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 213,476,056 213,476,056
Total At Amortized Cost 641,446,932 641,446,932

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Investment 273,148,980 273,148,980

Total Financial Assets 914,595,912 - - 014,595,912

Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Payable 407,678,482 407,678,482
Loans and Borrowings 4,908,279 4,908,279
Total Financial Liabilities 412,586,761 - - 412,586,761
] CASat: 32032075 e !-i.Carryixig‘ﬁmbunt-;»i.-f..'Le”vel 1] Level 277 Level 8.7

Financial Assets

Financial Assetg at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Receivable 330,271,423 330,271,423
Investment 80,000,000 80,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 186,252,719 186,252,719
Total At Amortized Cost 596,524,142 596,524,142

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVOCI)
Investment 273,627,323 273,627,323

Total Financial Assets 870,151,465 - - 870,151,465

Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Payable 367,106,583 367,106,583
Loans and Borrowings 5,840,287 5,840,287
Total Financial Liabilities 372,946,870 “ - 372,946,870
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2076 {16 July 2019)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Group has single class of equity shares where shares of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of
Rs. 10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity
shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion 1o the member’s share of the paid up equity share
capital.

4.2 Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in two subsidiaries where holding in one is 100% and on the
other is 73.63%. Upon consolidation of the financial statements, total portion of financial statements is
added by eliminating the portion of other shareholders by way of non-controlling interest.

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by SHL in excess of its face
value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
SHL had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this reserve
since then.

c. Retained Farning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first time
adoption of NFRS {1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at deemed cost
which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity
Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit Hability in which SHL was required
to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of the staff.
Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined contribution plan
whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as gratuity to employee with

effect fIr 19 Bhadra 2074. Such amount 15 rcqmred to be pa1d / deposzted to Soc1a1 Securlty Funct
e ©-Particulars:’ 207576 207475
Opemng hablhty 317,491 ,89 1 302 ,770,945
Payment made (6,662,852} £16,510,592)
Additional provision (as per then existing provision) - 17,671,099
Additional provision @8.33% 18,585,224 13,560,439
Cloging liability 329,414,263 317,491,801

SHL is yet to make payout of the gratuity in Social Security Fund.

Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability is

as follows

: ; .Particulars: LL2075-76 i |0 20TTS
Openlng hablhty 104,181,901 96,579,895
Service Cost 7,084,177 10,817,879
Interest Cost 7,229,749 6,491,488
Plan Amendment - (342,102}
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) 5,593,297 {1,676,595)
Benefit Paid (1,799,475) (7,688,664)
Closing Liability (A) 122,289,649 | 104,181,901
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 114,216,378 104,181,901
Deferred Liability {A-B) 8,073,271 -
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Out of the total leave liability of Rs. 122,289,649 as on 16 July 2019 determined by the actuary, only
Rs. 114,216,378 has been recognized in the financial statements and balance of Rs. 8,073,271 has
been deferred to be recognized in the future years as per the decision of the management. This is not

in Hne with the accounting policy adopted by the Group to account for long term liabilities.

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as follows:

: Particulars: L E0TBLT6 [ L 207478
Discount rate 7% T%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 15 15
Average duration of liabjlities 17 16

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

“Particulars S AT BET 6! 2074785
Effect on:
- Service Cost (913,985} (1,507,740)
- Interest Cost 1,032,820 927,623

- Leave Liability

{12,582,707)

(11,310,316}

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

207576 2074-75
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,113,386 1,858,466
- Interest Cost (1,032,820) {927,353}
- Leave Liability 14,932,148 13,468,773

Lease
SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 15 years. The
lease rental payment to be made is as follows!

future minimum

207
Up to one year 1,045,560
One to five years 4,182,240 4,810,260
Above five years 648,476 398,317
Total 5,876,276 6,370,629

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its

Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

assets on lease.

- 07 0747
Up to one year 36,382,104 25,546,693
One to five years 120,225,566 110,266,106
Above five years 470,367,452 309,517,808
Total 626,975,122 | 535,330,607

Health Club/Spa property under construction

SHL has entered into a leasing arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets with cancellable
condition and clauses with Dhanwantari Spa And Wellness Pvt. Ltd. (party) for construction and
subsequent use of wellness centre (building for Health Club-Spa) at the premise of SHL. As per the
arrangement, all the construction works of the building is being done by the party on behalf of SHL
and such assets being developed is included in Investment Property of the Group. The party will
operate the Spa for the defined period under the agreement for which the party shall pay some portion
of its total lease rental in cash and remaining portion is adjusted against the cost incurred by the
party for construction. The rental income as per the lease agreement has been commenced w.ef. 1
January 2019, however, the capitalization of the property was made on 30 June 2019 upon receipt of
completion certificate from the contractor.
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4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility
During the year, SHL has provided Rs. 2.99 million (previous year Rs. 2.79 million) (1% of net profit
after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 48 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act
2073.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Group’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management. The Group's risk management
policies are established to identify and amalyseé the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

i. Market Risk

Inspite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector locks for bright future. However there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the group through
yvears of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk
The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it
enjoy credit facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of
company debtors’ ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years has
been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular
recoverability position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The Group’s current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also follow
specific operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls implemented
by the company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also
carries out Contrel Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored high level marks
placing it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be on
the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk
of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate
fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Group has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Groupcomprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.

&, Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major sharcholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 [previous year Rs. 66,667) to
SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the year end.
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Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

i. BSoaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of
SHL, Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84
million. There is no transaction or cutstanding balance of this company with the Group.

b. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC}
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of SHL. NAC has one representative in the
Board of SHL.
SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:
il Revenue (in million) i Receivable (in-million}: -
i S e e e ~This Year ~|° Last Year |7 This Year : [ .Last ¥Year
Flight Catering Services 182.03 110.19
Tickets Purchase - 1.56 31.71 23.31
ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.
c. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the each company. As SHL is the
major shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by Board
of SHL. The composition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:
Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvi. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvit. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Lid.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Venkatesh Gomatam Director Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Vivek Bhalla Alternate Director to Mr. Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.
Venketash Gomatam
Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.
Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts te Rs. 1.18 million (previous year Rs. 1.00 million).
d. Key Management Personnel
The Group's key management personnel are Executive Chairman and General Manager of SHL.
Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 37.49 million {previous year
Rs. 32.03 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the
performance incentive paid based con the profit of the Hotel.
4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 9.08 million (previous year Rs. 6.53 million}.
4,10 Trade and Other Receivable
4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines
Civil Aviation Fees levied on In flight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to three
different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to Rs
7.051 million {previcus year Rs. 7.051 million ) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.
4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed by Jet
Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the insolvency
proceeding is yet to be decided, separate impairment allowance has not been created.
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4.11 Lien on company's assets
Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers
providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan against a
vehicle only amounting to Rs. 4.90 million (previous year Rs. 5.84 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrenice of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result of past
events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
econornic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate refiection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee
Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 2.9 million {previous year Rs. 2.9 million}

4.14  Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters
Revenue Tribunal has decided in SHL's favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. SHL is of the opinion that there would not be
significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii, Assessment status

SHIL has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

ifi. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by SHL against Government of Nepal for its demand of Casine
Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 (2062/63) till November 2012 (24 Kartik 2069) from SHL
instead of then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was issued in favour of SHL
from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly,the management considers that no further
obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such Royalty and no provision for the
additional claim has been made.

iv: Arhitration

SHL has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgment of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filed by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases

SHL has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its regular
business.

4.15 Capital Commitment

Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 110.92
million (Previous year Rs. 131.55 million).

4.16  Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

4.17 Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour
law in previous fiscal year, this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has
paid Rs. 10 million {previous year Rs. 20 million) during the year out of this fund to a separate entity
called Employee Housing.

4.18 Operating Segment

Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into
two operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.
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i.  Core hotel business segment: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related
recreational facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major
segment.

ii. TFlight catering segment: The Company provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and
related facilities to meet its standards.

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:
(Amount in millions)

‘Opérating Segment | Hotel Operation . [ 'Flight Catering 1 Total
Revenue
- Food 520.96 606.56 1,136.52
- Room 534.34 534.34
- Beverage 50.55 2.19 52.74
- QOthers 6.17 4.39 10.56
Interest Income ' 16.01 16.01
Other Income 86.68 86.68
Total Revenue 1,223.70 613.14 1,836.84
Exzpenses®
Consumption cost 154.38 147.17 301.55
Emplovee Benefit Expenses 451.01 100.00 551.01
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 279.80 237.33 517.13
Depreciation and Amortization 73.37 7.00 80.37
Finance Cost 0.73 0.73
Total Expenses 959.28 491.50 1,450.78
Segment Result 264.42 121.64 386.06
Income Tax 85.41
Profit for the period 300.65
Segment Assets 2,362.38 129.21 2,491.59
Segment Liabilities** 2,491.59

*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

=  Seament wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group managetheir capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Group’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in
order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Group’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

Regrouping and around off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.
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